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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Twenty Fourth Annual General Meeting of the Members of
HIPOLIN LIMITED A/1/1, Nilkanth Ind. Estate Sanand -Viramgam Highway,will be held at
Near Iyava Bus Stand, Via. Virochannagar, Ta:Sanand, Dist. : Ahmedabad-382170 on
Friday, 29 September, 2017 at 2.00 p. m.

th to transact the following business.

ORDINARY BUSINESS :

1. To receive, consider and adopt theAudited Financial Statements of the Company for
the financial year ended March 31, 2017 including Audited Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2017, the statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year
ended on that date and the reports of the Board of Directors (“the Board”) and
Auditors thereon.

2. Shri Bhupendra J. Shah ,To appoint a Director in place of (DIN 00325446) who
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

3. Shri Subhash J. Shah ,To appoint a Director in place of (DIN 02623088) who retires
by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

4. To appoint StatutoryAuditors of the Company and to fix their remuneration

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary

Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Section 139 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act”) and the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,as amended from time to time, M/s.
Borkar & Muzumdar., Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No.
101569W) be and is hereby appointed as the Auditors of the Company in, Mumbai
place of retiring auditors M/s Harish S. Patel & Co., Chartered Accountants, (ICAI
Firm Registration No.103551W), to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual
General Meeting (“AGM”) till the conclusion of the 29thAGM, ubject to ratifications of
such appointment by the shareholder at everyAGM.”s

the Board of Directors of the Company be and is“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

hereby authorized to fix their remuneration and reimbursement of out of pocket
expenses.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS :

5. APPOINTMENT OF SHRI NIRAV D. SHAH (DIN: 07711357) AS AN

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution, with or without
modification, as an :Ordinary Resolution

“ pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 read withRESOLVED THAT

Schedule IV and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014
as amended from time to time and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirement) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), Shri Nirav D. Shah (DIN:
07711357), who was appointed as an Additional Director in the meeting of the Board
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May 26, 2017

HIPOLIN LIMITED By Order of the Board,

CIN : L24240GJ1994PLC021719 For HIPOLIN LIMITED,

Registered Office:

A/1/1, Nilkanth Ind. Estate,

Sanand-Viramgam Highway, Apexa Panchal

Nr. Iyava Bus Stand, Company Secretary

Via  Virochannagar (P. O.) ACS-35725

Ta. : Sanand, Dist.: Ahmedabad-382170.

of Directors of the Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Act
and the Articles of Association of the Company and holds office upto the date of this
Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the company has received a notice
in writing under section 160(1) of the Act from a Member, proposing his candidature
for the office of a Director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as an
Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation and to hold office
for 5 (five) consecutive years for a term from 7 February, 2017 to 6 February, 2022.th th

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017



6

NOTES :

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT 24 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGth

(“AGM” OR “meeting”) OF THE COMPANY IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO
ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A
MEMBER.OF THE COMPANY. The instrument appointing proxy should, however, be
deposited at the Registered Of�ce of the company not later than 48 hours before the
commencement of the meeting. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not
exceeding 50(�fty)and holding in aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of
the company carrying voting rights. In case the proxy is proposed to be appointed by a
member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the company carrying voting
rights then such proxy cannot act as a proxy for any other person.

2. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed
from, Monday September 25, 2017 to Friday, September 29, 2017 (both days inclusive) for
the purpose ofAnnual General Meeting.

3. The Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and/ or Regulation
36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, in
respect of item No.5 is annexed hereto and forms part of this Notice.

4. In terms of provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Section 205 of
Companies Act, 1956), the amount of dividend remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period
of 7(seven) years from the date of its transfer to the Company's Unpaid DividendAccount, is
required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund, set up by the
Government of India and no payment shall be made in respect of any such claims by the
Fund. Accordingly, the unclaimed dividend in respect of �nancial year 2009-10 of the
Company will be due for transfer to the said Fund in October, 2017. The shareholders who
have not encashed their dividend warrants for �nancial year 2009-10 are requested to
contact Registrar and TransferAgents or Company Secretary, at the Company's Corporate
Of�ce.

5. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to intimate any changes in their
registered address, name, PAN details, etc. to their depository participants with whom they
are maintaining their demat account. Members holding shares in physical form are
requested to intimate any such changes to the Company or its RTA (M/s Link Intime India
Pvt. Ltd.)

6. Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to write their client ID and
DP ID numbers and those who hold shares in physical form are requested to write their folio
number in the attendance slip for attending the meeting.

7. Members are requested to bring their attendance slip duly �lled in along with their copy of
theAnnual Report to the meeting.

8. Electronic Copy of the Annual Report for 2016-17 along with the Notice of the 24 Annualth

General Meeting of the Company, inter-alia, including the Remote e-voting instructions,
Attendance Slip and the Proxy Form are being sent to all the members whose email IDs are
registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s) for communication purpose unless
any member has requested for a hard copy of the same. For members, who have not
registered their email address, physical copy of theAnnual Report for 2016-17 along with of

HIPOLIN LIMITED



Notice of the 24 Annual General Meeting of the Company, inter-alia, including the Remoteth

e-voting instructions, Attendance Slip and the Proxy Form are being sent by the permitted
mode. The said notice is also displayed on the Company's website viz www.hipolin.com
and on the website of the remote e-voting agency (Central Depository Services (India)
Limited) i.e. .www.evotingindia.com

9. Only registered members of the Company or any proxy appointed by such registered
member may attend the Annual General Meeting as provided under the provisions of the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

10. The Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of the
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members
holding shares in the electronic form are, therefore requested to submit their PAN to their
Depository Participant. Members holding shares in physical form shall submit their PAN
details to the Company.

11. A Route Map showing the Directions to reach the venue of the 24 Annual General Meetingth

is attached with the Notice as per the requirement of Secretarial Standard-2 on General
Meeting.

12. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the
meeting, pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send a
certi�ed copy of the Board Resolution/ Authorization together with specimen signatures,
authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.

13. Members desiring to seek information on Annual Accounts to be explained at the meeting
are requested to send their queries at least ten days before the date of the meeting so that
the information can be made available at the meeting.

14. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for inspection by the
Members at the Registered Of�ce of the Company on all working days, except Saturdays,
between 03.00 p.m. and 05.00 p.m. upto the date of Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

15. Voting Through Electronic Means:

I. In terms of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the
Companies(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as substituted by the
Companies(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 44 of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the
Company is pleased to provide members the facility to exercise their right to vote on
resolutions proposed to be considered at the 24 Annual General Meeting (AGM) byth

electronic means and business may be transacted through remote e-Voting
services. The facility of casting the votes by the members using an electronic voting
system from a place other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-Voting”) will be
provided by the Central Depository Services (India) Limited.

II. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and
the members who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to
exercise their right to vote at the meeting through ballot paper.

III. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to theAGM may also
attend theAGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017
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IV. Equity shareholders shall have one vote per share as shown against their
shareholding. The shareholders can vote for their entire voting rights as per their
discretion.

V. The Remote e-voting period commences on Tuesday, September 26, 2017 at 9:00
a.m. and ends on Thursday, September 28, 2017 at 5:00pm. During this period,
Members of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized
form, as on the cut-off date of September 22, 2017, may cast their votes
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.
Once the vote on a resolution is cast by shareholder, the shareholder shall not be
allowed to change it subsequently.

The instruction for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

(i) The voting period begins on Tuesday, September 26, 2017 at 9:00a.m. and ends on
Thursday, September 28, 2017 at 5:00pm. During this period, Members of the
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the
cut-off date of Friday, September 22, 2017, may cast their votes electronically. The e-
voting module shall be disabled by CDSLfor voting thereafter.

(ii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website .www.evotingindia.com

(iii) Click on Shareholders.

(iv) Now Enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits bene�ciary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number
registered with the Company.

(v) Next enter the Image Veri�cation as displayed and Click on Login.

(vi) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com
and voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be
used.

(vii) If you are a �rst time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical
shareholders)

• M e m b e r s w h o h a v e n o t u p d a t e d t h e i r PA N w i t h t h e
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence
number which is printed on Address stickers/mail indicated in the PAN
�eld.

DOB Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format)
as recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to
login.

If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please
enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details �eld as
mentioned in instruction (iv).
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( i) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.vii

ix( ) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company
selection screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach
'Password Creation' menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login
password in the new password �eld. Kindly note that this password is to be also used
by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they
are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform.
It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and
take utmost care to keep your password con�dential.

x( ) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-
voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

xi( ) Click on the EVSN No. for the Hipolin Limited on which you choose to170819057

vote.

xii( ) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the
same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The
option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you
dissent to the Resolution.

xiii( ) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution
details.

xiv( ) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A
con�rmation box will be displayed. If you wish to con�rm your vote, click on “OK”,
else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

xv( ) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify
your vote.

xvi( ) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to
print” option on the Voting page.

(xvii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then Enter the User ID
and the image veri�cation code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as
prompted by the system.

xviii( ) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app m- Voting

available for android based mobile phones. The m- Voting app can also be

downloaded from Google Play Store. Please follow the instructions as

prompted by the mobile app while voting on your mobile phones.

(x )ivv Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and
Custodian are required to log on to and registerwww.evotingindia.com
themselves as Corporates.

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the
entity should be emailed to .helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017
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• After receiving the login details a compliance user should be created using the
admin login and password. The Compliance user would be able to link the
account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

• The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and
on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which
they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF
format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the
Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at
www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

VI. A person whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of
bene�cial owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be
entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting at the AGM through
ballot paper.

VII. Shri Gaurang Shah, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. ACS 38703
and Certi�cate of Practice No. 14446) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to
scrutinize the Remote e-voting and the poll process at the Annual General Meeting
in a fair and transparent manner.

VIII. The scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, will �rst count the
votes cast at the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-
voting in the presence of atleast two witnesses not in the employment of the
Company and shall make, not later than 48 hours from the conclusion of theAGM, a
Consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any,
and submit the same to the Chairman or any Director of the Company authorized by
the Chairman, who shall countersign the same.

IX. The Results shall be declared forthwith on receipt of consolidated report from the
Scrutinizer. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed
on the Company's website and on the website of CDSL and shallwww.hipolin.com
also be communicated to the BSE Limited.

16. This notice has been updated with the instructions for voting through electronic
means as per the amended Rules, 2015.
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE

The Statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and

Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015

ITEM NO. 4:

This Explanatory Statement is provided through strictly not required as per Section 102 of theAct.

M/s Harish S. Patel & Co., chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad, (ICAI Firm Registration
No.103551W) have been Auditors of the Company since First Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on 26 September, 1994.th

As per provisions of Section 139 of the Act, no listed Company can appoint or re-appoint an audit
firm as auditor for more than two terms of five consecutive years. Section 139 of the Act has also
provided three years from the date of commencement of the Act to comply with this requirement.
In view of above, the term of M/s Harish S. Patel & Co. as auditors of the Company cannot be
extended beyond the conclusion of the forthcomingAnnual General Meeting (“AGM”).

The Board of Directors has, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, at its meeting
held on 26 May, 2017 proposed the appointment of M/s Borkar & Muzumdar, Charteredth

Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No. 101569W), Mumbai as Statutory Auditors of the
Company, to hold an office from the conclusion of this AGM till the conclusion of the 29th AGM ,
s of subject to ratification such appointment by the shareholder at everyAGM.”

M/s Borkar & Muzumdar have consented to their appointment as Statutory Auditors and have
confirmed that if appointed, their appointment will be in accordance with the Section 139 read with
Section 141 of theAct.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No.4 of the Notice for approval
of Members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is, in any
way, concerned or interested in the passing of Resolution No. 4 of the Notice.

ITEM NO. 5:

The Board of Directors had appointed, Shri Nirav D. Shah (DIN: 07711357) as an Additional
Director, Independent category, of the Company with effect from 7 February, 2017 pursuant toth

Section 161 of the Act . As such Shri Nirav D. Shahand the Articles of Association of the Company
holds office as an Additional Director up to the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
and is eligible for appointment as Director. Notice, under Section 160 of the Act, alongwith the
security deposit has been received from a Member proposing Shri Nirav D. Shah as a candidate
for the office of a Director of the Company. He is aged about 45 years, holds a Bachelor's Degree
of Commerce and Bachelor's Degree of Law.

As per the provisions of Section 149 of theAct, an Independent Director shall hold office for a term
upto five consecutive years on the Board of a Company and is not liable to retire by rotation.

Shri Nirav D. Shah has consented to act as a Director of the Company and has given a declaration
to the Board that he meets the criteria of Independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017
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May 26, 2017

HIPOLIN LIMITED By Order of the Board,

CIN : L24240GJ1994PLC021719 For HIPOLIN LIMITED,

Registered Office:

A/1/1, Nilkanth Ind. Estate,

Sanand-Viramgam Highway, Apexa Panchal

Nr. Iyava Bus Stand, Company Secretary

Via  Virochannagar (P. O.) ACS-35725

Ta. : Sanand, Dist.: Ahmedabad-382170.

Act and under Regulation 16(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

In the opinion of the Board, Shri Nirav D. Shah fulfils the conditions as specified in the Act and the
Rules made there under for appointment as Independent Director and he is independent of the
management. The Board, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, commends his appointment as Independent Director for a period of five consecutive
years form 7 February, 2017 upto 6 February, 2022.th th

In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV of theAct, the appointment
of Shri Nirav D. Shah as an Independent Director is now being placed before the Members in the
General Meeting for their approval.

The terms and conditions of appointment of Shri Nirav D. Shah, pursuant to the provisions of the
Schedule IV of the Act, shall be open for inspection by any Member at the Registered Office of the
Company during normal business hours on any working day.

Except Shri Nirav D. Shah being an appointee, none of the other Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company and their relatives are in any way concerned or interested, financially
or otherwise, in the passing of resolution as set out at Item No.5.

The disclosure under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is provided asAnnexureAof this Notice.

HIPOLIN LIMITED
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AnnexureA

Brief Particulars of Directors seeking Appointment/ Re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting Pursuant of Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015) and Secretarial Standards on General Meeting (SS-2) issued
by the ICSI:

# Brother of Shri Bhupendra J. Shah (Chairman), Shri Jaykumar J. Shah (Vice Chairman), Shri Shailesh J. Shah
(Managing Director) and Shri Bharat J. Shah (Whole-time Director & CFO).

## Brother of Shri Jaykumar J. Shah (Vice Chairman), Shri Shailesh J. Shah (Managing Director), Shri Bharat J. Shah
(Whole-time Director & CFO) and Shri Subhash J. Shah (Whole Time Director).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

[Pursuant to Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations. 2015, a Management DiscussionAndAnalysis Report is given below:]

ECONOMY:

Indian economy grew at a healthy rate of 7.1% during FY 2016-17 despite demonetisation. The
pace of growth, however, did slow down as compared to the growth of past three years. Lower
growth rate attributable to the decline in investment on account of stressed balance sheets in the
corporate sector and moderat growth in industrial sector. Amongst other factors, India's futuree
outlook will be majorly impacted by introduction Goods & Services Tax (GST) andof
demonetisation. GST is expected to create a common Indian market, improve tax compliance,
boost investment & growth and improve governance. Demonetisation has had short-term costs in
form of slow growth but holds potential for eventually leading to higher GDP growth, better tax
compliance and greater tax revenues.

INDUSTRY HIGHLIGHTS:

In view of convenience and escalating purchasing power accompanied with continuous &
constant ample advertising & marketing, the demand of soaps & detergents has increased
substantially.

There is a good scope of penetrating rural markets besides urban markets at a national level. In
the long run, its growth will not be affected by adverse factors like recession or inflation.

OPERATIONS:

The turnover of the Company was down to Rs. Rs.1367.66 Lakhs compared to 1565.70 Lakhs
during the previous year. The same resulted in increase in Net loss to Rs. compared60.28 Lakhs
to Net loss of Rs. during the previous year.58.64 Lakhs

OPPORTUNITIES:

(A) Due to awareness of an average citizen, with reference to CLEAN INDIA, demand of
detergent may increase having multiplying effect.

(B) There is a potentiality for an International market along with timely availability of the
products at an affordable economic price.

(C) The ultimate users may be approached via e-commerce & reputed retail chain of the
Bazaars like Star Bazaar, D Mart, Big Bazaar etc.

(D) Public at large has been more alert about health & hygiene.

THREATS:

(A) To create Company's Brand loyalty is a costly affair by means of a very aggressive
marketing in all Medias like TVAdvertisements, slide shows, hoardings etc.

(B) An average customer is too price sensitive & may leave Company's brand for a marginally
costly product compared to a competitor just because of heavy dose of marketing cost.

HIPOLIN LIMITED
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(C) Brand building & generating brand loyalty in the minds of consumers like multinationals &
national competitors may eat the company's major portion of resources.

RISKSAND CONCERNS:

1) The Company faces stiff & cut throat competition not only from multinationals but also from
national/domestic competitors.

2) More expenses of advertising & marketing calls for deployment of funds result in higher
burden of interest.

3) Inflationary tendency in cost elements like raw material cost, interest cost, marketing cost &
transportation cost affect adversely to net margins as in competitive market selling price
cannot be increased to absorb them all and hence generate low profit margin.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS:

The Company has an adequate system of Internal Controls aimed at achieving efficiency in
operations, optimum utilization of resources and compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations. The observations and recommendations given by the InternalAuditors, a reputed firm
of Chartered Accountants, for improvement of the business operations and their implementations
are reviewed by theAudit Committee.

HUMAN RESOURCES:

Talent acquisition, retention and development are an integral part of the HR Initiatives.

Your Company recognizes that transformation is successful only if the human capital is prepared
for change & trained to accept new challenges. The Company has got very cordial relations with
the employees at all the levels particularly with the workers. This year also, as at March 31, 2017,
the Company had 49 employees on the payroll of the Company.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

Certain statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's
analysis and interpretations are forward looking. Actual results may vary from those expressed or
implied. The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any such
statements on the basis of subsequent developments, information or events. The risks outlines
are not exhaustive. Readers are requested to exercise their own judgment in assessing the risk
associated with the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,

The Members,

Your Directors present the Twenty Fourth Annual Report and Audited Accounts of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2017.

Financial Results

16

1. OPERATIONSAND THE STATE OF COMPANY'SAFFAIRS

(A) Sales and Profit:

The sales and other income of the Company during 2016-17 were lower to
Rs.1367.66 Lakhs compared to 1565.70 Lakhs of the previous year. The lossRs.
incurred to Rs. 60.28 Lakhs during the year 2016-17 as compared to Rs. 58.64
Lakhs of the previous year.

(B) Raw Material:

Required quantities of the Raw materials were available from within India.

(C) Export:

Company has not made any export during the year (Rs.24.44 Lakhs during Previous
year).

HIPOLIN LIMITED
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2. DIVIDEND:

In view of loss incurred during the year under review, your Board of Directors does not
recommend any dividend for the financial year 2016-17.

3. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

Your Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to General Reserves for the financial
year ended March 31, 2017 in view of losses.

4. DEPOSITS:

The Company has not accepted any Fixed Deposits under Chapter V of the Act during the
financial year and as such, no amount on account of principal or Interest on Deposits from
public was outstanding as on March 31, 2017.

5. PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, GUARANTEES GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE

AND SECURITIES PROVIDED :

Particulars of loans given, guarantees given, investments made by the Company pursuant
to Section 186 of the Act, are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements which forms
part of theAnnual Report.

6. MATERIAL CHANGES OCCURREDAFTER END OF THE FINANCIALYEAR:

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this Annual Report, no material changes and
commitments which could affect the Company's financial position have occurred between
the end of the financial year of your Company and date of thisAnnual Report.

7. INSURANCE:

All fixed assets and movable assets of the Company are adequately insured.

8. LISTING:

Company's Securities are listed on BSE Limited at Mumbai. The Company has already
paid the listing fees for FY 2016-17 and also paid the listing fees for the FY 2017-18 in the
month ofApril, 2017 to BSE Limited.

9. INDIANACCOUNTING STANDARDS (INDAS)-IFRS CONVERGED STANDARDS:

The Company will adopt Ind-AS with effect from 1 April, 2017 pursuant to Ministry ofst

Corporate Affairs' notification dated 16 February, 2015 notifying the Companies (Indianth

Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015.

10. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 134(3) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 with
respect to Directors' Responsibility Statement, the Directors hereby confirm:

a) that in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2017, the
applicable accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule III
of the Companies Act have been followed and there are no material departures from
the same;

b) that the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2017 and of the loss of the Company for the year ended on that date;
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c) that the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

d) that the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a `Going Concern' basis;

e) that the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the
company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating
effectively; and

f) that the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating
effectively.

11. DIRECTORS:

Shri Narendra N. Shah resigned as a Director (Independent) with effect from November 9,
2016. The Board places on record its appreciation for contributions made by Shri Narendra
N. Shah during his tenure as an Independent Director of the Company.

The Board at its meeting held on February 7, 2017 appointed Shri Nirav D. Shah as an
Additional Director (Independent) of the Company effective from February 7, 2017 on
recommendation made by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Articles of
Association of the Company, Shri Bhupendra J. Shah, Executive Chairman and Shri
Subhash J. Shah, Whole Time Director of the Company, retire by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment.

The Independent Directors of the Company have given the certificate of Independence to
the Company stating that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under
Section 149(6) of the Act and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

A brief resume and other relevant details of the Directors proposed to be appointed/ re-
appointed are given in the Explanatory Statement to the Notice convening 24 Annualth

General Meeting.

There is no change in the composition of the Board of Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company during the year under review, except as stated above.

12. BOARD EVALUATION:

The evaluation of Board, its Committees and Individual Directors was carried out as per the
criteria laid down by the Board of Directors based on the recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

13. MEETINGS OF THE BOARDAND COMMITTEES:

The Board met four times during the year, details of which are given in the Report on
Corporate Governance that forms the part of this Annual Report. The intervening gap
between the meetings was within the period prescribed under the Act and SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Details of meetings of all
the Committees of the Board have been given in the Report on Corporate Governance.
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14. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

There was no employee drawing an annual salary of Rs. 102.00 lakhs or more where
employed for full year or monthly salary of Rs. 8.50 Lakhs or more where employed for part
of the year and therefore, no information pursuant to the provisions of Rule 5 (2) and (3) of
The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is
required to be given.

Disclosure with respect to remuneration of the Directors and employees as required under
Section 197 of the Act, and the Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 have been annexed to this report as
AnnexureA.

15. AUDITORS:

• StatutoryAuditors

M/s Harish S. Patel & Co., Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad retire as Statutory Auditors
of the Company from the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting . The(“AGM”)
Audit Report given by the Auditors on the financial Statements of the Company is a part of
theAnnual Report. There has been no qualification, reservation or adverse remark given by
theAuditors in their Report.

In accordance with Section 139 of the Act, listed companies cannot appoint or re-appoint
the auditor for more than two terms of five consecutive years, if the auditor is an audit firm.
Existing companies, which are covered under the auditor rotation, should comply with
these requirements within three years from the date of commencement of theAct.

M/s Harish S. Patel & Co., Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No. 103551W),
Ahmedabad since 1994 and have completed a term of twenty three years. It is now
therefore proposed to appoint M/s Borkar & Muzumdar, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm
Registration No. 101569W), Mumbai as Statutory Auditors of the Company. Further M/s
Borkar & Muzumdar, have consented to be appointed as Statutory Auditors of the
Company and confirmed that their appointment, if made, would be in compliance with the
provisions of the Sections 139 and 141 of theAct and Rules framed thereunder.

The Audit Committee and the Board, at their respective meetings held on May 26, 2017
have recommended the appointment of M/s Borkar & Muzumdar Chartered Accountants
(ICAI Firm Registration No. 101569W), Mumbai as Statutory Auditors of the Company,
from the conclusion of the ensuing until the onclusion of theAGM c 29thAGM, subject to the
ratification of such appointment by the shareholders at everyAGM.

• SecretarialAuditors

Pursuant to Section 204 of The Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules thereof, the Board of
Directors had appointed M/s. M. P. Mehta & Co., Company Secretaries, Ahmedabad, as
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the FY 2016-17. A Secretarial Audit Report for FY
2016-17 is annexed herewith as Annexure B.

The said report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

• CostAuditor:

As per the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as amended by Companies
(Cost Records andAudit)Amendment Rules, 2014, issued by the Central Government, the
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Company is not required to get its cost records audited by a CostAuditor. But the Company
is maintaining cost records voluntarily and obtained the Certificate of Maintenance of Cost
Records from the CostAuditor.

16. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE :

As per Regulation 34(3) read with schedule V of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the
Report on Corporate Governance and the Auditor's Certificate regarding compliance of
conditions of Corporate Governance are made part of thisAnnual Report.

17. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT:

The Business Responsibility Report, as required under Regulation 34(2)(g) of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable to the Company.

18. CONTRACTSANDARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

All contracts / arrangements / transactions with related parties entered into by the Company
during the financial year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and at
an arm's length basis. During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract /
arrangement / transaction with related parties which could be considered material in
accordance with related party transactions.

19. VIGIL MECHANISM:

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy. All employees of the Company also have
access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in case they wish to report any concern.
The Whistle Blower Policy has been posted on the website of the Company
( ). All cases registered under Whistle Blower Policy of the Company, ifwww.hipolin.com
any, are reported to and are subject to the review of theAudit Committee.

20. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Company follows well-established and detailed risk assessment and minimization
procedures, which is periodically reviewed by the Board. The Company has in place a
business risk management framework for identifying risks and opportunities that may have
a bearing on the organization's objectives, assessing them in terms of likelihood and
magnitude of impact and determining a response strategy.

The Senior Management assists the Board in its oversight of the Company's management
of key risks, including strategic and operational risks, as well as the guidelines, policies and
processes for monitoring and mitigating such risks under the aegis of the overall business
risk management framework.

21. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENTAT WORKPLACE:

The Company firmly believes in providing a safe, supportive and friendly environment- a
workplace where our values come to life through the supporting behaviours. Positive
workplace environment and a great employee experience are integral part of our culture.
The Company believes in providing and ensuring a workplace free from discrimination and
harassment based on gender.

The Company educates its employees as to what may constitute sexual harassment and in
the event of any occurrence of an incident constituting sexual harassment; the Company
provides the mechanism to seek recourse and redressal to the concerned individual
subjected to sexual harassment.

During the year there was no complaint of sexual harassment lodged with the Company
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22. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, AND FOREIGN

EXCHANGE EARNINGSAND OUT GO:

A. Conservation of Energy

The Company has not incurred significant amount on electricity, as most of the
products of the company are mixing of various ingredients. The percentage of
electricity expenses is very negligible to total expenses. However, the Company
ensures conservation at all possible levels.

B. TechnologyAbsorption

The Company has established a well-equipped Quality Control Laboratory and
Research and Development Laboratory. The Research & Development Laboratory
does not require any sophisticated instruments.

The Company has adopted indigenously available technology for its production
process. The Company has not adopted any foreign technology.

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo

23. EXTRACT OFANNUAL RETURN:

The extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 in accordance with Section 92(3) of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 read with Companies (Management &Administration) Rules, 2014 is
annexed herewith as to this Report.Annexure C

24. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

Your Board of Directors wishes to place on record its appreciation to the contribution made
by the employees of the company. The Directors also wish to thank the Government
authorities, financial institutions, banks and shareholders for their cooperation and
assistance extended to the company.
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Particulars 2016-17 2015-16
Foreign Exchange Earnings (Rs.) NIL 6,27,627
Foreign Exchange Utilised (Rs.) NIL NIL

(Amount in Rs.)

Date : May 26, 2017 For and on behalf of the Board,

Place : Ahmedabad

Bhupendra  J. Shah Shailesh J. Shah

Chairman Managing Director

(DIN: 00325446) (DIN: 00777653)
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS' REPORT

AnnexureA

DISCLOSURE ON MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

[Pursuant to Section 197(12) read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

1. Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the Employees of
the Company for FY 2016-17:

( : (i) the expression “median” means the numerical value separating theExplanation

higher half of a population from the lower half and the median of a finite list of numbers may
be found by arranging all the observations from lowest value to highest value and picking
the middle one; (ii) if there is an even number of observations, the median shall be the
average of the two middle values)

2. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary, if any, during the FY 2016-17:

The ratio of remuneration of each Director to the Median Remuneration of all employees
who were on the payroll of the Company and the percentage increase in remuneration of
the Directors during the financial year 2016-17 are given below:
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* The Non Executive Independent Directors of the Company are entitled to sitting fees
as per the statutory provisions and within the limits approved by the shareholders.
The details of remuneration of Non Executive Independent Directors are provided in
the Report on Corporate Governance.

** Key Managerial Personnel (KMP).

# Details not given as Shri Narendra N. Shah was a Director only for part of the FY
2016-17 i.e. Resigned w.e.f. 09.11.2016.

^ Details not given as Shri Nirav D. Shah was a Director only for part of the FY 2016-17
i.e.Appointment w.e.f. 07.02.2017.

2. The percentage increase in the remuneration of CFO (as well as Whole Time Director) is
10.06%, Managing Director is 10.68% and of the Company Secretary is 1.15%

3. The percentage decrease in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year is:
10.64%

4. The number of permanent employees on rolls of the Company: 49

5. The average increase in the remuneration of all employees 8% for the FY 2016-17. The
increase in the Managerial remuneration is 9.17%.

6. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company:

It is affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and other employees, adopted by the Company.
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Annexure B

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED March 31, 2017

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members,
HIPOLIN LIMITED,
A/1/1, Nilkanth Ind. Estate,
Sanand-Viramgam Highway,
Near Iyava Bus Stand,
Via Virochannagar (P.O.)
Ta.: Sanand, Dist. :Ahmedabad- 382 170.

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by HIPOLIN LIMITED (hereinafter called “the Company”).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby
report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31 March, 2017 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31 March, 2017 according to the
provisions of:

1) The CompaniesAct, 2013 (theAct) and the rules made there under;

2) The Securities Contracts (Regulation)Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

3) The DepositoriesAct, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

4) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable as Company has neither earned nor

expended/utilized any foreign exchange during the year under review.)

5) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of IndiaAct, 1992 ('SEBIAct'):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
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b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable as Company has not issued

any shares during the year under review.)

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999/ The Securities and
Exchange Board of India (share Based Employees Benefits), Regulations, 2014;
(Not applicable as Company has not provided such facility during the year

under review.)

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable as Company has not issued any Debt

Securities during the year under review.)

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable as the Company has not delisted any of its

shares from any stock exchange during the year under review.)

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of Securities) Regulations,
2008; (Not applicable as the Company has not bought back any of its shares

from any stock exchange during the year under review.)

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

6) As advised by the Management, Law specifically applicable to the Company is:

a) Food Safety and StandardsAct, 2006.

I observe that the specific law, as applicable to the Company is being duly complied
with by various cross functional departments and plant managers.

I have been informed that Direct & Indirect Tax laws & Labour Laws are observed by
the Professionals associated with the Company.

7) I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India

(ii) The ListingAgreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I further report that
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Date  : May 15, 2017 For  M. P. Mehta & Co.,

Place : Ahmedabad Company Secretaries

M. P. Mehta

Proprietor

FCS NO.:2413, C.P. No.:1941

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of theAct.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings and detailed agenda were
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

Decisions of the Board are unanimously carried through, as recorded in the minutes of the Board
Meetings, and hence no dissenting views are recorded.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period, there is no specific event or any action having a major
bearing on Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, standards etc. referred to above.

HIPOLIN LIMITED



27

To,
The Members,
Hipolin Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We
believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6. The SecretarialAudit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

Date  : May 15, 2017 For  M. P. Mehta & Co.,

Place : Ahmedabad Company Secretaries

M. P. Mehta

Proprietor

FCS NO.:2413, C.P. No.:1941
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I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i. CIN:- L24240GJ1994PLC021719
ii. Registration Date: 31.03.1994
iii. Name of the Company:- HIPOLIN LIMITED
iv. Category/ Sub-Category of the Company:- Public Company/ Limited by Shares
v. Address and Contact Details:

a. Registered Office:- A/1/1Nilkanth Industrial Estate, Sanand-Viramgam Highway,
Near Iyava Bus Stand, Via Virochannagar (P.O.)
Ta. : Sanand, Dist. :Ahmedabad-382170.
Phone: (02717) 284202

b. Corporate Office:- 45, Madhuban, 4 Floor, Nr. Madalpur Garnala,th

Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad-380006.
Phone: (079) 26447730-31
Email: hipolin@hipolin.com, csapexapanchal@gmail.com
Website: www.hipolin.com

vi. Whether listed company: Yes
vii. Name,Address and Contact details of Registrar and TransferAgent, if any:

LINK INTIME INDIAPRIVATE LIMITED.

C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai – 400 083
Tel No : +91 22 49186270 Fax: +91 22 49186060
E-mail id: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
Website : www.linkintime.co.in
Ahmedabad Unit:
5 Floor, 506 to 508,Amarnath Business Center-I (ABC-I),th

Beside Gala Business center, Nr. St. Xavier's College Corner,
Off C.G. Road, Navrangpura,Ahmedabad-380009.
Phone No.: 079-26465179
Email Id.: .ahmedabad@linkintime.co.in

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESSACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

The only principal business activities of the Company is manufacturing and trading of
Detergent Powder and Cake and allied products which contribute 100% of the total turnover
of the Company.

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARYANDASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

Sl. No. Name and Address CIN/GLN Holding/ % of Applicable
of the Company Subsidiary/ Shares held Section

Associate

N.A.

Annexure C

FORM NO. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31 March, 2017

st

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Break-up as percentage of Total Equity)

i. Category-wise Share Holding

29
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ii. Shareholding of Promoters /Promoters Group
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iii. Change in Promoters' Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change)

# Inter-se Transfer among Promoters, Sales & Purchase of shares

24/06/2016

24/06/2016 (3200)

(300)

24/06/2016

24/06/2016

24/06/2016

20/01/2017

20/01/2017
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iv. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders

(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs andADRs)

Note :Top ten shareholders of the company as on March 31, 2017 has been considered for the above disclosure
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v. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

(Amount in Rs.)

*     Resigned w.e.f. 09.11.2016
** Appointed w.e.f. 07.02.2017

V. Indebtedness

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/ accrued but not due for
payment

(4346431) (4346431)
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORSAND KEY MANGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole Time Director and/ or Manager

Amount (in Rs.)

* Shri Bharat J. Shah is the CFO as well as Whole Time Director of the Company.

B. Remuneration to Other Director
Amount (in Rs.)

*    Resigned as a Director w.e.f. 09.11.2016
** Appointed as a Director w.e.f. 07.02.2017
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other than MD/ Manager/ WTD:

Amount (in Rs.)

* Covered under A. above

VII. Penalties/Punishment/ Compounding of Offences: NotApplicable
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Report on Corporate Governance

[Pursuant to Part C of Schedule V to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015]

1. BRIEF STATEMENT ON COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON THE CODE OF

GOVERNANCE

The Company has built its Corporate Governance practices on basis of Transparency and
Accountability. The Company's philosophy is to develop the desired framework and
institutionalize the spirit it entails. The Company is in full compliance with the Corporate
Governance norms as stipulated in the Listing Regulations. The Board considers itself as a
Trustee of company's shareholders and acknowledges its responsibilities towards them for
creating and safeguarding their wealth.

This report sets out the governance systems and processes of the Company, as set out in
the Listing Regulations for the financial year ended 31  March, 2017.st

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

• Composition of the Board (Board)

The Composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is in conformity
with the requirement of Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

The Board of Directors as on the date of this report is comprises of Ten Directors, of
which Five are Executive Directors and the remaining Five are Non- executive
Directors including one woman Director (1/2 of Board Strength), representing
optimum combination of professionalism, knowledge and experience to ensure the
independence of the Board and to separate the Board functions of governance and
management.

None of the Directors on the Company's Board is a member of more than 10
Committees and Chairperson of more than 5 Committees (Committees being, Audit
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee) across all Public companies
in which he is a Director. All the Directors have made necessary disclosures
regarding the positions held by them in Committees of other Companies and also
Directorship of other Companies.

Attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings and last Annual General Meeting
(AGM) along with the Directorship(s)/ Committee membership(s) held by them in
other Companies:
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* For the purpose of considering the number of Directorships and Committee
membership/Chairpersonship, all public limited companies(other than Hipolin
Limited), whether listed or not, are included and all other companies including
private limited companies, foreign companies and companies registered
under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 are excluded. Details of
Committee comprise only membership/chairpersonship of Audit Committee
and Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

** Shri Narendra N. Shah had resigned from the Board of Directors w.e.f.
November 09, 2016

^ Shri Nirav D. Shah had been appointed as an Additional Director
(Independent) w.e.f. February 07, 2017.

: Shri Bhupendra J. Shah, Shri Jaykumar J. Shah, Shri Shailesh J. Shah, ShriNote
Subhash J. Shah, Shri Bharat J. Shah are Brothers. Remaining Directors are
not related inter-se.

During the year, there have been no materially significant related party transactions,
pecuniary relationships or transactions between the company and its non-executive
Directors that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.
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• Composition of the Board (Board)

The Composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is in conformity with the
requirement of Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

The Board of Directors as on the date of this report is comprises of Ten Directors, of
which Five are Executive Directors and the remaining Five are Non- executive
Directors including one woman Director (1/2 of Board Strength), representing
optimum combination of professionalism, knowledge and experience to ensure the
independence of the Board and to separate the Board functions of governance and
management.

None of the Directors on the Company's Board is a member of more than 10
Committees and Chairperson of more than 5 Committees (Committees being, Audit
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee) across all Public companies
in which he is a Director. All the Directors have made necessary disclosures
regarding the positions held by them in Committees of other Companies and also
Directorship of other Companies.

Attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings and last Annual General Meeting
(AGM) along with the Directorship(s)/ Committee membership(s) held by them in
other Companies:

No. Date of Meeting No. of Directors Present

1 26 May, 2016 9th

2 10 August, 2016 8th

3 10 November, 2016 8th

4 07 February, 2017 9th

• Independent Directors

Independent Directors are Non- Executive Directors as defined under the Listing
Regulations. All Independent Directors fulfil the criteria to be independent as
specified by the Listing Regulations and Section 149 of theAct. The maximum tenure
of the Independent Directors is in compliance with the Act. The terms and conditions
of appointment of the Independent Directors are disclosed on the website of the
Company.

The Independent Directors meet at least once in a financial year without the
presence of Promoter Directors and management personnel. They discuss the
matters pertaining to the business and other related affairs of the Company. The
views expressed at such meeting are brought to the knowledge of the Chairman.

A Separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 07 February, 2017.th

Shri Narendra N. Shah, being an Independent Director of the Company, had
resigned as a Director of the Company effecting from November 09, 2016. All the
Independent Directors were present at the meeting.
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• Selection of New Directors:

Firstly, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee identifies, based on
Company's policy for such position, suitable person having an expert knowledge and
skill in his / her profession / area of business and who can effectively participate in
Board proceedings and recommends the same to the Board. The Board after
evaluating the said Committee's recommendation takes the decision which
according to the Board is in the best interest of the Company.

• Code of Conduct:

The Company has in place separate texts of Code of Conduct – one for all the
Directors and the other for all Senior Management Personnel. It seeks to achieve,
among others, higher standards of personal and professional integrity. A copy of the
code has been placed on the Company's website ( ). The code haswww.hipolin.com
been circulated to all the Directors and Senior Management Personnel and they
affirm its compliance every year.

3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

(A) Audit Committee

The members of theAudit Committee have wide exposure and knowledge in areas of
finance and accounting. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee have been
drawn up in line with Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and
Provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Audit Committee, inter

alia, provides reassurance to the Board on the existence of an effective internal
controls environment.

The terms of reference of the Committee are described below:

1. Oversight of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its
financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and
credible;

2. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and if required, the
replacement or removal of statutory auditor and fixation of audit fees.

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the
statutory auditors;

4. Reviewing with management the annual financial statements and auditor's report
thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:

a) Matters required to be included in the Directors' Responsibility Statement to
be included in the Board's report in terms of clause (c) of sub section 3 of
Section 134 of the CompaniesAct, 2013,

b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the
same,

c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of
judgment by management,
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d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit
findings,

e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial
statements,

f) Disclosure of any related party transactions,

g) Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report

5. Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements before its
submission to the Board for approval;

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of
funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus
/ notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation
of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to
the Board to take up steps in this matter.

7. Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness
of audit process.

8. Approval of any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with
related parties

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors,
adequacy of the internal control systems;

of13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure
the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the
department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

14. Discussion with internal auditors, any significant findings and follow up thereon;

15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into
matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control
systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board;

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about nature and
scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors,
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends)
and creditors;

18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;
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Name Category No. of Committee
Meetings attended

Smt Nita B. Shah (Chairperson) Independent Director 3

ShriAjay R. Gandhi Independent Director 4

Shri Virendra B. Shah Independent Director 4

19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the Whole time Finance Director or any other
person heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the
qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

20. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee.

In addition to the areas noted above, Audit Committee looks into controls and
security of the Company's internal control systems and internal audit reports.

The Audit Committee comprises of three Independent Directors namely Smt. Nita B.
Shah, Shri Ajay R. Gandhi and Shri Virendra B. Shah as the members of the
Committee. Smt. Nita B. Shah is the Chairperson of the Committee.

Meetings of the Audit Committee are also attended by the CFO, Statutory Auditors
and the InternalAuditors as permanent invitees. The Company Secretary acts as the
Secretary to the Committee. Four (4) Audit Committee meetings were held, during
FY 2016-17, on 26 May, 2016, 10 August, 2016, 10 November, 2016 and 7th th th th

February, 2017.

Composition of the Committee as on 31 March, 2017 and details of attendance ofst

the members at Committee meetings during the year are given below:

(B) Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

In terms of Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Provisions of Section
178(1) of the CompaniesAct, 2013, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”)
has been constituted.

The terms of reference of the Committee are described below:

1. To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed
in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down and to recommend to
the Board their appointment and removal;

2. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the
remuneration for the Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

3. To formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

4. To devise a policy on Board Diversity;

5. Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director,
on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors.
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During FY 2016-17, the NRC comprises of three (3) Independent Directors namely,
Shri Ajay R. Gandhi, Smt. Nita B. Shah and Shri Umesh P. Mehta as the members of
the Committee. Mr.Ajay R. Gandhi is the Chairman of the Committee. The Company
Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

The Company has adopted a Nomination and Remuneration policy. The Nomination
and Remuneration Policy is in compliance with all applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, particularly Section 178 read with the applicable rules thereto
and Regulation 19(4) of the SEBI (Listing Regulations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The key objective of the remuneration policy is to
ensure that it is aligned to the overall performance of the Company and the
remuneration paid to the Directors is in line with the remuneration policy of the
Company. The remuneration policy is placed on the website of the Company.

Two (2) Committee meetings were held during FY 2016-17, on 26 May, 2016 and 7th th

February, 2017. Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on
31 March, 2017 and details of attendance of the members at Committee meetingsst

during the year are given below:

Name Category No. of Committee
Meetings attended

ShriAjay R. Gandhi (Chairman) Independent Director 2

Smt Nita B. Shah Independent Director 2

Shri Umesh P. Mehta Independent Director 2

Remuneration to Directors:

(a) Pecuniary Relationship of Non- Executive Directors

The Company has no pecuniary relationship or transaction with its Non-Executive
and Independent Directors other than payment of sitting fees to them for attending
Board meetings.

(b) Remuneration paid to Directors:

The Executive Directors of the Company viz., Managing Director and Whole Time
Directors have been appointed in terms of the resolutions passed by the
shareholders at the annual general meetings. Elements of the remuneration
package comprise of salary, perquisites and other allowances as approved by the
members at the annual general meetings. The Independent Directors are paid sitting
fees. Sitting fees to the Independent Directors are being paid as permissible under
Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014.

The details relating to remuneration of Directors, as required under Regulation 34 of
SEBI (Listing Regulations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are as
follows during FY 2016-17:
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Amount (in Rs.)

*    Shri Narendra N. Shah resigned as a Director w.e.f.09 November, 2016th

**   Shri Nirav D. Shah appointed as an Additional Director (Independent) w.e.f.07 February, 2017th

The Company has not granted any stock options to its Directors.

(C) Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

Stakeholders' Relationship Committee has been constituted to monitor, review and
redressal of investors' grievances of security holders, if any, like Transfer /
Transmission / Demat of Shares, Non-receipt of Annual Report, Non-receipt of
Declared Dividends, Loss of Share Certificates etc. It comprises of Shri Ajay R.
Gandhi, Independent and Non-Executive Director as Chairman of the Committee,
Shri Shailesh J. Shah, Managing Director and Shri Subhash J. Shah, Executive
Director as the members of the committee. At the meeting of the Board of Directors
held on 26 May, 2016, Shri Jaykumar J. Shah was inducted in the Stakeholder'sth

Relationship Committee in place of Shri Subhash J. Shah. At present, Ms. Apexa
Panchal, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company.

During the FY 2016-17, Four (4) Committee meetings were held on 26 May, 2016;th

10 August, 2016; 10 November, 2016 and 07 February, 2017 and all the membersth th th

attended the Meetings.

During the year, no complaints were received from the security holders as per the
certificate of RTA. The Company had no transfers pending at the close of the
financial year.

(D) Management Committee

The Management Committee comprises of 4 Members namely (1) Shri Shailesh J.
Shah, Managing Director (2) Shri Bhupendra J. Shah, Whole Time Director
(Chairman), (3) Shri Bharat J. Shah, CFO & Whole time Director and (4) Shri
Jaykumar J. Shah, Whole Time Director (Vice-Chairman). The Committee looks
after businesses which are administrative in nature and within the overall Board
approved directions and framework. Two Meetings were held during the year. The
Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.
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4. DISCLOSURES

a) The Company has no materially significant related party transactions i.e.
transactions of the Company of material nature with its promoters, the Directors, the
management or their relatives etc. that may have potential conflict with the interests
of the Company at large.

Details of related party transactions are elaborated in Note No. 30 to the financial
statements. The Company has formulated a policy on materiality of Related party
Transactions and also on dealing with Related party transactions and during the
year, there were no material transactions with related parties. The policy is also
available on the website of the Company. (www.hipolin.com)

b) There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company or Penalties imposed
on the Company by the Stock Exchange(s) or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any
matter related to Capital Markets, during the last three years.

c) The Company has put in place the Whistle Blower Policy and the same is available
on the website of the Company. Under the said policy, the employees are
encouraged to report genuine concerns about suspected misconduct without fear of
punishment or unfair treatment. During the year under review, no employee was
denied the access to theAudit Committee and / or its Chairman.

d) The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements of Regulations 17 to 27
of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

5. CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company's code of conduct is based on its values and clarifies the principles and
expectations for everyone who works at the Company. It applies to all the employees,
officers and members of the Board of the Company. The Code of Conduct is available on
the website of the Company . The Board of Directors is responsible forwww.hipolin.com
ensuring that rules are in place to avoid conflict of interest by the Board members and the
Management. The Board has adopted the Code of Conduct for the members of the Board
and Senior Management Team and the same is available on the website of the Company
www.hipolin.com. The Company has in place a prevention of Insider Trading Code based
on SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. This code is applicable to
Insiders. The code ensures prevention of dealing in shares by the persons having access to
the unpublished price sensitive information.

6. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company regularly interacts with shareholders through multiple channels of
communication such as results' announcement, annual report, media releases, company's
website and subject specific communications.

During the year, the quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results of the Company's
performance were submitted to the Stock Exchange (BSE) soon after its approval by the
Board of Directors at their Meetings and were also published in English and vernacular
newspapers. Annual financial performance of the Company is also posted on the
Company's website i.e. .www.hipolin.com

The Quarterly Results, Shareholding Patterns and all other corporate communication to the
Stock Exchange are filed through BSE Listing Center, for dissemination on their website.

The report on Management Discussion and Analysis is annexed and forms part of the
annual report.
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7. DETAILS OF GENERAL MEETINGS

Location, date and time of General Meetings held during the last 3 years:

General Shareholder Information

Day, Date, time and venue of 24 Annual General Meeting:
th

Friday, 29 September, 2017 at 2.00 p.m. at registered office: A/1/1, Nilkanth Ind. Estate,th

sanand Viramgam Highway, Nr. Iyava Bus Stand, Via Virochannagar, (P.O.) Ta. : Sanand,
Dist.:Ahmedabad-382170.

Book Closure Date:

From Monday, September 25, 2017 to Friday, September 29, 2017 (both days inclusive)

Financial Calendar (Tentative)

Financial reporting for the quarter ending

June 30, 2017 Second week of September, 2017

Financial reporting for the quarter/half year ending

September 30, 2017 Second week of December, 2017

Financial reporting for the quarter ending

December 31, 2017 Second week of February, 2018

Financial reporting for the year ending

March 31, 2018 Fourth week of May, 2018

Annual General Meeting for the year ending

March 31, 2018 September, 2018
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8. STOCK PRICE:

High/Low of monthly Market Price of Company's Equity Shares traded on the Bombay
Stock Exchange during the financial year 2016-17 is furnished below:

The year-end price of the equity share of the Company at BSE Limited was Rs. 43.90

Share Price Performance in comparison to broad based indices such as BSE Sensex

as on March 31, 2017:

9. SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM

Link Intime India Private Limited having registered office situated at C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S.
Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai – 400 083 is the Share TransferAgent of the Company.

Valid Share transfers in physical form and complete in all respects were approved,
registered and dispatched within stipulated period.

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit & Certificate pursuant to Regulation 40 (9) of

SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015:

A Practicing Company Secretary carried out a Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit to
reconcile the total admitted capital with NSDL and CDSL and the total issued and listed
capital. The audit confirms that the total issued/paid up capital is in agreement with the
aggregate of the total number of shares in physical form and the total number of shares in
dematerialized form (held with NSDLand CDSL).
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Pursuant to Regulation 40 (9) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, certificates, on half-
yearly basis, have been issued by a Company Secretary-in-Practice for due compliance of
share transfer formalities by the Company.

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

As on March 31, 2017 93.29 %shares of the Company were held in dematerialized form,

and the rest in physical form. The shares are traded on BSE Limited.

Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2017.

Categories of Shareholders, Category-wise Shareholding as on March 31, 2017
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Date: May 26, 2017 For Hipolin Limited,

Place: Ahmedabad Shailesh J. Shah

Managing Director

(DIN: 00777653)

A/1/1, Nilkanth Ind. Estate, sanand Viramgam Highway,Registered Office & Factory:

Nr. Iyava Bus Stand, Via Virochannagar,
(P.O.) Ta. : Sanand, Dist.:Ahmedabad-382170.

Corporate Office: 45, Madhuban, 4 Floor, Nr. Madalpur Garnala,th

Ellisbridge,Ahmedabad – 380006.
Tele. No. (079) 26447730-31

Contact Person: MsApexa Panchal
Company Secretary

E-mail: hipolin@hipolin.com, csapexapanchal@gmail.com

Website: www.hipolin.com

Unclaimed Dividends Rs. 1,29,489/- for the financial year 2009-10
(balance as on 31.03.2017)

Registrar & TransferAgent: Link Intime India Private Limited

C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West),
Mumbai – 400 083

10. CEOAND CFO CERTIFICATION

The Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company give annual
certification on financial reporting and internal controls to the Board in terms of Regulation
17(8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The Managing Director and the Chief Financial
Officer also give quarterly certification on financial results while placing the financial results
before the Board in terms of Regulation 33 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The annual
certificate given by the Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer is published in this
Report.

11. CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT POLICY

As provided under Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Board
Members and the Senior Management Personnel have confirmed compliance with the
Code of Conduct for the year ended March 31, 2017.

Listing on Stock Exchanges at:

BSE Limited

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street,
Mumbai – 400 001.

Listing fees for the year 2017-18 have been paid to the Stock Exchange.

Bombay Stock Exchange …. 530853Stock Codes :

Demat ISIN No. in NSDL& CDSLfor Equity Shares …. INE963A01011
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CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION

UNDER REGULATION 17(8) OF SEBI (LODR) REGULATIONS, 2015

To,

The Board of Directors,

Hipolin Limited

(1) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement of Hipolin Limited for
the year ended March 31, 2017 and hereby certify that to the best of our knowledge and
belief :

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material
fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and
are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and
regulations.

(2) During the year, there are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered
into by the Company which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's Code of
Conduct.

(3) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness of Company's internal control systems
pertaining to financial reporting. We have not come across any reportable deficiencies in
the design or operation of such internal controls.

(4) We have indicated to theAuditors and theAudit Committee :

(i) that there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during
the year;

(ii) that there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and

(iii) that there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware.

Date : May 26, 2017 (Bharat J. Shah) (Shailesh J. Shah)

Place : Ahmedabad

Chief Financial Officer Managing Director

& Whole-time Director (DIN: 00777653)

(DIN: 00777734)
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Auditor's Certificate on Corporate Governance

To

The Members of

Hipolin Limited

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Hipolin

Limited for the year ended on 31 March 2017, as stipulated in Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listingst

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing Regulations”).

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management.
This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintainence of internal control and
procedures to ensure the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance stipulated in
the Listing Regulations.

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by
the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and
explanations provided to us and the representations provided by the Management, we certify that
the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI
Listing Regulations during the year ended 31  March, 2017st

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

For Harish S. Patel & Co.

CharteredAccountants

(Firm Reg. No.103551W)

Date : May 26, 2017

Place :Ahmedabad Harish S. Patel

Proprietor

Membership No. No.:8497
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Independent Auditors' Report

To the Members of Hipolin Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of (“the Company”),Hipolin Limited

which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss andst

the Cash Flow Statement for the year th ended and a summary of the significant accountingat
policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of theAct for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the Accounting and Auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
Rules made there under. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing,
issued by the Institute of CharteredAccountants of India, as specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the company has
in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating
effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2017 and its loss and its Cash Flows for the yearst

ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of theAct, we give in
theAnnexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of theAct, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the act, read with rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31st

March, 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is
disqualified as on 31 March, 2017, from being appointed as a Director in terms ofst

section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B” to this report;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in theAuditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit andAuditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements. Refer to the financial statements;Note-31

2) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

3) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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For Harish S. Patel & Co.

CharteredAccountants

(Firm Reg. No.103551W)

Place : Ahmedabad Harish S. Patel

Date : May 26, 2017 Proprietor

Membership No. No.:8497

4) The Company has provided requisite disclosure in its Financial Statements as
to holding as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during period from 8th

November, 2016 to 30 December, 2016 and those are in accordance with theth

books of accounts maintained by the Company and as produced by the
Management to us. Refer to the financial statements.Note-28

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017



54

“Annexure A” to Independent Auditors' Report
[Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading 'Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirements' of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on 31st March, 2017.]
1) (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;
(b) All the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the

year here is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is. T
reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its assets. No
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the Management, the title
deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

2) The inventory has been physically verified by the Management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such physical verification.

3) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
other parties covered in the Register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon.

4) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not given any loans, made any investments, given any guarantees or provided any
security cover under the provisions of section 185 and 186 of theAct.ed

5) The company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of section
73, 74, 75 and 76 of theAct and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

6) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company pursuant to
the Rules made by the Central Government of India, maintenance of cost records has been
prescribed under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the products
manufactured by the Company, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed
accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a
detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate and
complete.

7) (a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account and records, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs,
Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the
appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2017 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of
provident fund, employees state insurance, duty of customs, cess which have not
been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. However,
according to information and explanations given to us, the following dues of income
tax, VAT, CST and duty of excise / service tax have not been deposited by the
Company on account of disputes;

HIPOLIN LIMITED
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8) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. The Company did not have any
outstanding loans or borrowings dues in respect of a financial institution or bank or to
government or dues to debenture holders during the year.

9) Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and
explanations given by the management, the company has not raised moneys by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term Loans.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company
and hence not commented upon.

10) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by
the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by
the officers or employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

11) Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and
explanations given by the management, the managerial remuneration has been
paid/provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the CompaniesAct, 2013;

12) In our opinion, the company is not Nidhi Company. Therefore the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not
applicable to it he provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to company.. T

13) According to the information and explanations given by the management, all transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of CompaniesAct, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the Balance Sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

15) Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and
explanations given by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with Directors or persons connected with him as referred to in Section 92 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

16) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 45 IAof
the Reserve Bank of IndiaAct, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For Harish S. Patel & Co.
CharteredAccountants
(Firm Reg. No.103551W)

Place : Ahmedabad Harish S. Patel
Date : May 26, 2017 Proprietor

Membership No. No.:8497

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017
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HIPOLIN LIMITED

“Annexure B” to Independent Auditors' Report

[Referred to in paragraph number 2 (f) under the “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of the Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members of Hipolin Limited
on the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of

the CompaniesAct, 2013 (“theAct”)

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting of Hipolin Limited (“the
Company”) as of 31st March, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the CompaniesAct, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and
the Standards on Auditing as specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.
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For Harish S. Patel & Co.

CharteredAccountants

(Firm Reg. No.103551W)

Place : Ahmedabad Harish S. Patel

Date : ProprietorMay 26, 2017

Membership No. No.:8497

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that

1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and Directors of the company; and

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of CharteredAccountants of India.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017
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As per our separate report of even date For and behalf of the Board
For, M/s. HARISH S. PATEL & CO.
Chartered Accountants Bhupendra J. Shah Shailesh J. Shah
[Firm Reg. No. 103551W] Chairman Managing Director

DIN: 00325446 DIN: 00777653

(HARISH S. PATEL) Bharat J. Shah
Propreietor Chief Financial Officer & Whole time Director
Membership No. 8497 DIN: 00777734

Apexa Panchal
Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No.:35725

Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
Date  : May 26, 2017 Date  : May 26, 2017

HIPOLIN LIMITED

The accompanying notes are forming part of the financial statements

Amount (in Rs.)

95,252,081

5,347,533

95,252,081

44,198,142
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The accompanying notes are forming part of the financial statements

As per our separate report of even date For and behalf of the Board
For, M/s. HARISH S. PATEL & CO.
Chartered Accountants Bhupendra J. Shah Shailesh J. Shah
[Firm Reg. No. 103551W] Chairman Managing Director

DIN: 00325446 DIN: 00777653

(HARISH S. PATEL) Bharat J. Shah
Propreietor Chief Financial Officer & Whole time Director
Membership No. 8497 DIN: 00777734

Apexa Panchal
Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No.:35725

Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
Date  : May 26, 2017 Date  : May 26, 2017

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017

Amount (in Rs.)
Statement of Profit & Loss For the Year ended on 31 March 2017

st

(8,314,495)

(8,314,495)

(8,314,495)

(6,109,168)

(6,109,168)

(6,109,168)

(6,028,327) (5,863,988)
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CASH  FLOW  STATEMENT  FOR  THE YEAR  ENDED  ON 31 MARCH,2017
ST

Amount (in Rs.)

HIPOLIN LIMITED

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

3,603,642

16,152,134

3,992,206 8,338,146

3,960,786 (588,606)

3,606,561 (642,416)

(4,346,431) (8,391,956)
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Amount (in Rs.)

As per our separate report of even date For and behalf of the Board
For, M/s. HARISH S. PATEL & CO.
Chartered Accountants Bhupendra J. Shah Shailesh J. Shah
[Firm Reg. No. 103551W] Chairman Managing Director

DIN: 00325446 DIN: 00777653

(HARISH S. PATEL) Bharat J. Shah
Propreietor Chief Financial Officer & Whole time Director
Membership No. 8497 DIN: 00777734

Apexa Panchal
Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No.:35725

Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
Date  : May 26, 2017 Date  : May 26, 2017

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017

Notes: (1) The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in Accounting
Standard-3 on Cash Flow Statement issued by the Institute of CharteredAccountants of India.

(2) The Previous year's figures have been re-grouped wherever necessary to make them comparable
with this year's figures.

– –

13,790,236 10,183,675
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HIPOLIN LIMITED

A: NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2017 :
ST

1. Corporate Information:

Hipolin Limited (“The Company”) was incorporated on March 31, 1994 under the provision
of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in manufacturing of Detergent
Powder & Cake and alike products. The manufacturing facility for the same is set up at
A/1/1, Nilkanth Ind. Estate, Sanand-Viramgam Highway, Nr Iyava Bus Stand, Via
Virochannagar (P. O.) Ta. : Sanand, Dist.: Ahmedabad, Gujarat. The equity shares of the
Company are listed on BSE Limited.

2. Summary of SignificantAccounting Policies :

2.1 Accounting Convention

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with
the Notified Accounting Standards by the Companies Accounting Standard Rules,
2006 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Accounts have
been prepared following the mercantile system of accounting and accordingly
revenues / income and costs / expenditure are generally accounted on accrual basis,
as they are earned or incurred.

2.2 Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be
made that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the
financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Difference between the actual result and estimates are recognized
in the period in which the results are known / materialized.

2.3 FixedAssets:

Fixed assets are stated at cost(including all direct cost and other incidental expenses
incurred in connection with acquisition of assets apportioned thereto and is net of
input tax credit availed) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

2.4 Depreciation:

Depreciation on different fixed assets have been provided based on useful lives of
respective assets as provided in Part-C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.
Depreciation on Plant & Machinery have been provided considering their useful life
as 15 years as applicable to other than Continuous Process Plant.

2.5 Inventories:

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is arrived at as
under:

RAW MATERIALS :At Cost (FIFO)

PACKING MATERIALS :At Cost (FIFO)

STOCK IN PROGRESS :Absorption Cost Basis

STOCK IN GOODS :Absorption Cost Basis
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2.6 Revenue Recognition:

i. Revenue from Sales of goods is recognized when significant risks and rewards of
ownership of goods have been passed on to the buyers. Revenue from operations
are inclusive of Excise Duty.

ii. Interest is accounted for on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the rate applicable.

2.7 Transaction of Foreign Currency Items:

Transactions in Foreign Currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange in force on
the date of the transactions. Monetary items denominated are transacted at the rate
prevailing on that date.

2.8 Prior Period Expenses / Income:

The Secretarial Audit fees of Rs. 100000 for the year 2015-16 is considered as prior
period expenses.

2.9 Employees Benefit:

(a) Defined Contribution Plan:

The Company's contributions paid/ payable for the year to Provident Fund are
recognized in the Profit and LossAccount.

(b) Defined Benefit Plan:

The employees' gratuity fund scheme is managed through a separate entity which
has taken specific policy under Group Gratuity scheme from life Insurance
corporation of India. This is defined benefit plan. Actuarial gains and losses are
immediately recognized in the profit and loss account as income or expense.

2.10 Cenvat Credit:

Cenvat Credit is accounted for on accrual basis on purchase of goods and on eligible
services.

2.11 Taxes on Income :

Current Tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as
determined in accordance with the provisions of Income-TaxAct, 1961.

Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences; being the difference between
taxable income and accounting income that originate in the one period and are
capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets in
respect of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses are not recognized
as there is no virtual certainty that there will be sufficient future taxable income
available to realize such losses.

2.12 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and ContingentAssets:

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are
recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017
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probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are not
recognized but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent assets are neither recognized
nor disclosed in the financial statements.

2.13 Impairment :

The carrying amounts of fixed assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date, if
there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. An
impairment loss will be recognized wherever the carrying amount of fixed assets
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is greater of the
asset's net selling price and value in use. In assessing the value in use the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to the present value at the weighted average cost of
capital.

2.14 Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit /loss for the year
attributable to equity share holders by the weighted average number of the equity
shares during the year. The number of shares used in calculating earnings per share
is the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

2.15 Investments:

Investments are classified into current and Non Current investments. Current
investments are stated at the cost. Non Current investments are also stated at cost.
Provision for diminution in value of such investment, if any, is not made as required
underAS-13

HIPOLIN LIMITED
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amount (in Rs.)

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017

5,00,00,000 5,00,00,000

3,13,13,000 3,13,13,000
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Amount (in Rs.)

HIPOLIN LIMITED

Working Capital Loans of Rs.54,35,276/- (Previous Year Rs.92,78,975/-) of HDFC Bank Ltd. are secured
primarily by hypothecation by way of first charge on all present and future Stock, Book Debts and collateral
security by way of Equitable mortgage of industrial property bearing survey No. 163/A at village Iyava Ta.
Sanand, Dist.- Ahmedabad. Current rate of Interest is 11.75% p.a. Further Loan (Previous Year Rs.
50,02,080/-) of Yes Bank are also Secured primarily by hypothecation by way of first pari passu charge on
current assets with HDFC Bank Ltd. and collateral security by way of Equitable mortgage of commercial
property situated at 4th Floor, Madhuban, Nr. Madalpur Garnala, Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad-380006. Current
rate of Interest is 12.75% p.a.

Overdraft against Fixed Deposits of Rs. 5,08,767/- (Previous Year Rs. 3,36,825) of Bank of India having
current rate of Interest 9.55% p.a. and Rs. 30,88,799/- of Kalupur Commercial Co. Op. Bank having current
rate of Interest 9.70% p.a.

675,047 2,952,174

6,963,538 9,032,842
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Amount (in Rs.)

5,558,903 3,456,022

133,033 35,590

5,044,286 5,250,672

907,667 872,158



01.04.2016 01.04.201631.03.2017 31.03.2017 31.03.2017 31.03.2016

TOTAL 53,799,453 209,700 483,653 53,525,500 29,481,441 3,138,471 336,758 32,283,154 21,242,347 24,318,012

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Amount (in Rs.)

Amount (in Rs.)

NOTE : 09 FIXED ASSETS-TANGIBLE ASSETS (NET)

HIPOLIN LIMITED

01.04.2015 01.04.201531.03.2016 31.03.2016 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

TOTAL 56,507,326 2,224,053 4,931,926 53,799,453 30,157,704 3,603,642 4,279,905 29,481,441 24,318,012 26,349,622

2,914,087 5,818,738

11,086,018 12,879,939
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Amount (in Rs.)

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017

15,811,488 20,162,166

6,298,717 6,538,664

18,761,655 17,128,521

13,790,236 10,183,675

5,347,533 8,451,288

Provision for Leave Encashment 74,176
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Amount (in Rs.)

HIPOLIN LIMITED
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Amount (in Rs.)

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017
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HIPOLIN LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Amount (in Rs.)

Amount (in Rs.)

B) NOTES ONACCOUNTS :

26. Previous year's figures have been regrouped, reworked, rearranged and reclassified
whenever necessary.

27. Segment Reporting:

The Company has only one reportable business segment i.e. Detergent Powder & cake as
primary segment.

28. Disclosure on Specified Bank Notes:

During the year, the Company has Specified Bank Notes (SBNs) or other denomination
notes as defined in the MCAnotification, G.S.R. 308(E), dated 30 March, 2017. The detailsth

of SBNs held and transacted during the period from November 8, 2016 to December 30,
2016, the denomination-wise SBNs and other notes as per notification are as follows:

(1) For the purposes of this clause, the term 'Specified Bank Notes' shall have the same meaning provided
in the notification of the Government of India, in the Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs
number S.O. 3407(E), dated the 8th November, 2016.”.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017

Amount (in Rs.)



30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION DISCLOSURES

a) List of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

and relationship

b) Transactions with related parties

Managerial Remuneration

31. Contingent Liabilities Not Provided For In Accounts :

32. Excise Duty amounting to Rs. 2.49 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 0.11 Lakhs) on finished goods
not cleared is neither provided nor is the same considered for valuation of closing stock.
Hence this has no impact on the profit/ loss of the accounting year.

33. (a) In the opinion of the Directors, Current assets, Loans and Advances have the value
at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet, if realized in the ordinary course of
business.

(b) The confirmations of some parties for the amount due to them/ amount due from
them as per books of accounts are not received. Necessary adjustments, if any, will
be made when the accounts are reconciled/ settled.

74

HIPOLIN LIMITED

Amount (in Rs.)

Particulars Amount (Rs. In Lakhs)
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SIGNATURES TO NOTES 1 TO 36

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For Harish S. Patel & Co.

Chartered Accountants Bhupendra J. Shah

(Firm Reg. No.103551W) Chairman

(DIN: 00325446)

Shailesh J. Shah

Managing Director

(DIN: 00777653)

Harish S. Patel Bharat J. Shah

Proprietor Whole Time Directors &

Membership No. No.:8497 Chief Financial Officer

(DIN: 00777734)

Date : May 26, 2017 Apexa Panchal

Place : Ahmedabad. Company Secretary

Membership No.: A-35725

34. Since it is not possible to ascertain with reasonable certainty the quantum of
accruals in respect of certain Insurance and other claims, Excise and custom duty
Refund, Interest on overdue bills from customers, etc., the same are to be accounted
on cash basis.

35. All the Raw Materials, Components and other items consumed are indigenous. There is no
consumption of imported Raw material, Components and other items.

36. Based on the information available with the company the balance due to Small Enterprise
as under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006(“MSMED Act”) is
Rs. 1,33,033/-(Previous Year Rs. 35,590/-)

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017
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PROXY FORM

HIPOLIN LIMITED

Regd. Office: A/1/1, Nilkanth Ind. Estate, sanand Viramgam Highway, Nr. Iyava Bus Stand,
Via Virochannagar, (P.O.) Ta. : Sanand, Dist.: Ahmedabad-382170.

Ph. No.079-26447730-31 CIN: L24240GJ1994PLC021719
Email: , web:hipolin@hipolin.com csapexapanchal@gmail.com www.hipolin.com

Form MGT-11

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rule, 2014]

and whose signatures(s) are appended below as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for
me/us and on my/our behalf at the of the Company, to be held on24 Annual General Meeting

th

Friday, September 29, 2017 at 2:00 p.m. at Registered Office of the Company at A/1/1, Nilkanth
Ind. Estate, sanand Viramgam Highway, Nr. Iyava Bus Stand, Via Virochannagar, (P.O.) Ta. :
Sanand, Dist.:Ahmedabad-382170 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions
as are indicated below:

Name of the member(s) : ______________________________________________________

Registered Address : ______________________________________________________

: ______________________________________________________

E-mail Id : ______________________________________________________

Folio No./*Client Id : ______________________________________________________

*DP Id : ______________________________________________________

I/We being the member(s) of __________________shares of hereby appoint:Hipolin Limited,

1) _____________________of _____________ having email-id _____________ or failing him

2) _____________________of _____________ having email-id _____________ or failing him

3) _____________________of _____________ having email-id ________________________



Signed this___________ day of _________2017 Signature of shareholder

Signature of first proxy holder __________________________________________

Signature of second proxy holder __________________________________________

Signature of third proxy holder __________________________________________

**I wish my above Proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the box below:

Affix

Revenue

Stamp

Re.1

Notes:
1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the

Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the

meeting.

2) Aproxy need not be a member of the Company.

3) Aperson can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not
more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding
more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single
person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

**4) This is only optional. Please put ( ) in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the√
Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will
be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate.

5) Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he/she so
wishes.

6) In case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the joint
holders should be stated.

Resolution No. For Against

1. Consider and adopt Audited Financial Statements,

for the year ended on 31 March, 2017st

2. Re-appointment of Shri Bhupendra J. Shah (DIN 00325446),

as Director- Promoter Category, who retires by rotation

3. Re-appointment of Shri Subhash J. Shah (DIN 02623088),

as Director- Promoter Category, who retires by rotation

4. Appointment of M/s. Borkar & Muzumdar., Chartered Accountants

(ICAI Firm Registration No. 101569W) as Auditors and fixing their

remuneration

5. Appointment of Shri Nirav D. Shah (DIN: 07711357)

.as Independent Director



ATTENDANCE SLIP

HIPOLIN LIMITED

Regd. Office: A/1/1, Nilkanth Ind. Estate, sanand Viramgam Highway, Nr. Iyava Bus Stand,
Via Virochannagar, (P.O.) Ta. : Sanand, Dist.: Ahmedabad-382170.

Ph. No.079-26447730-31 CIN: L24240GJ1994PLC021719
Email: hipolin@hipolin.com,csapexapanchal@gmail.com    web: www.hipolin.com

PLEASE FILL ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVE AT THE ENTRANCE OF THER

MEETING PLACE

Joint shareholders may obtain additional Slip at the venue of the meeting.

DP Id* ___________________________________ Folio No. ___________________

Client Id*___________________________________ No. of Shares ___________________

Address ___________________________________

___________________________________

___________________________________

I hereby record my presence at the 2 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company held on4th

Friday 29 7 S -, September , 201 at 2:00 p.m. at Regd. Office A/1/1, Nilkanth Ind. Estate, anand
Viramgam Highway, Nr. Iyava Bus Stand, Via Virochannagar, (P.O.) Ta. : Sanand,
Dist.:Ahmedabad-382170.

_________________________

Signature of Shareholder/Proxy

* Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.



If undelivered, please return to :
HIPOLIN LIMITED
45, Madhuban, 4 th Floor,
Nr. Madalpur Garnala,
Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad  380 006.

COURIER / REGD. POST / SPEED POST


